
 

Page 1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
October 3, 2001 

 
1. The meeting was called to order by General Manager Griego at 

1:00 p.m. in the District Boardroom, 2554 Sweetwater Springs Boulevard, 

Spring Valley, California. 

 DIRECTORS PRESENT: Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
  Lopez 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: General Manager Griego 

Chief of Engineering and Water Ops. 
     Gunstinson 
Chief of Administrative Svcs. and Finance 
     Alvarez 
Special Counsel Garcia 
District Secretary Cruz 
Others per attached list  

 
 Upon conclusion of the Pledge of Allegiance, General Manager Griego 

presented the agenda for approval. 

A motion was made by Director Lopez, seconded by Director Inocentes 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
Lopez 

 Noes: None 
 
to approve the agenda as listed. 

2. General Manager Griego presented the demands for approval.  

Director Cardenas asked for clarification on checks which appeared on the 

early release lists presented at previous board meetings.  He noted that on the 

September 5 and 26, 2001 early release lists, checks in the same amount of 

$63,740.64, payable to Burke, Williams and Sorensen, appeared on both lists.  

He asked why this check appeared twice if it had already been released.  Mr. 

Approval 
of 
Agenda 

Approval 
of 
Demands  



 

Page 2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Joe Beachem indicated that at the September 5, 2001 Board meeting, the 

check of $63,740.64 was not approved by the Board so staff was bringing it 

back for formal approval.  Director Cardenas indicated that he did not agree 

with the practice of staff asking the Board to approve payments for which 

checks have already been released.  He indicated that he did not want to 

approve checks which had already been released. 

Director Inocentes asked that the checks which were listed as “early 

release,” were actually not released?  Mr. Beachem indicated that any check 

listed on the early list has been released prior to the Board meeting. 

Director Cardenas also asked clarification on the following check: 

- Marston and Marston, Inc., Public Relations Services, August:  

He asked if this is a check which was cut per the contract which 

was recently approved by the Board or is this under a prior 

contract.  General Manager Griego indicated that it was a prior 

contract.  Director Cardenas asked if this contract had a different  

scope than the contract recently approved.  General Manager 

Griego indicated that it had a lessor scope than the contract 

approved last week.  Director Cardenas indicated that he had 

sent a records request for the contract and canceled checks for 

Marston and Marston, Inc. to Mr. Joe Beachem. 

- Southwestern College, 40th Anniversary Sponsorship:  He asked 

clarification on what the payment was for.  General Manager 

Griego indicated that Southwestern College asked the District to 

participate in the annual foundation event and it is similar to 

what we do with the Filipino Chamber of Commerce, Hispanic 



 

Page 3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Chamber of Commerce and other charitable organizations.  He 

stated that it is part of the District’s efforts toward community 

participation. 

Director Inocentes indicated that he had not yet received the information 

he requested with regard to copies of the invoices for the $202,000 billed by 

Burke, Williams and Sorensen, LLP.  He also asked for the invoices for the 

$63,740.64 which appeared on the September 5, 2001 demands.  General 

Manager Griego asked District Secretary Susan Cruz to handle Director 

Inocentes request as soon as possible.  Ms. Cruz indicated she would do so. 

A motion was made by Director Lopez, seconded by Director Croucher 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
Lopez 

 Noes: None 
 
to approve the demands as listed.  Director Inocentes and Cardenas voted 

“yes” with the exception of check number 98684 for $63,740.64, Burke Williams 

and Sorensen, and 99164 for $8,305.25, Marston and Marston, Inc.  Director 

Cardenas also indicated he did not approve of the checks noted on the early 

release list. 

3. General Manager Griego asked if anyone in the audience wished 

to be heard on any item. 

Ms. Laura Kercher indicated to President Bonilla that she was there to 

serve him with a notice of intention to circulate a recall petition on behalf of 

ratepayers in division two (2).  She indicated that if anyone at the meeting had 

any questions, she would leave a few copies of the notice on the desk at the 

door which notes a telephone number which can be called for questions. 

Public 
Participa-
tion 



 

Page 4 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Director Fred Cardenas indicated that he was speaking as a ratepayer 

under the public participation portion of the agenda.  He indicated that he had 

attended the LAFCO Board Meeting this past Monday and that an article had 

appeared in the morning paper with reference to the meeting.  He stated that he 

agreed with the opinion of the gentleman who had been quoted in the article 

that impeachments and recalls were appropriate for this Board.  Director 

Cardenas indicated that he felt that corruption and improprieties were at the 

heart and core of Otay’s problems today and that it was important that the 

Board do the right things.  He stated that he disagrees with this Board 

approving legal costs of approximately $396,000 for the past eight (8) months.  

He also indicated that employees should not be afraid of what was occurring at 

LAFCO and that they should let them do their job.  He stated that he was 

extremely upset that the District’s Legal Counsel had sent a letter to LAFCO 

opposing the review item on their agenda.  He indicated that he felt that the 

letter was filled with inconsistencies and asked that the Board agendize this 

issue for discussion.  Director Cardenas stated that he was appalled at the 

actions and approvals that this Board makes on some of the issues brought 

before them. 

4. General Manager Griego presented the consent calendar for 

approval.  Director Inocentes indicated he wished to pull item 6b, Authorize the 

General Manager to execute an amended construction agreement with San 

Diego County Water Authority (CWA) for the design and construction of the 

Tijuana emergency connection with Mexico, for discussion. 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Consent 
Calendar 



 

Page 5 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Croucher, Inocentes and Lopez 
 Noes: Director Cardenas 
 
to approve the consent calendar, with item 6b pulled for discussion. 

5. General Manager Griego indicated that the next item is the 

Tijuana emergency connection with Mexico pulled from the consent calendar for 

discussion.  Mr. Mehdi Arbabian indicated that this is an amendment to the 

agreement with CWA to change the construction to two (2) phases due to 

environmental concerns with regard to the connection which was to be 

constructed by CWA to allow Otay to deliver emergency treaty water to Mexico.  

He indicated that the two phases of construction would be first to construct the 

metering facility and the backflow preventor and the second phase would be to 

construct the pipeline which is an existing 14” and up-sizing it to a 24” pipeline. 

 Director Inocentes asked if these amendments would change the 

wheeling rate to Mexico.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that the two topics are not 

related.  He indicated that staff has another item under action items which will 

discuss the wheeling rate.  He indicated this is solely an agreement between 

Otay and CWA for the construction of the facilities and paying for the design 

and construction and would not impact the wheeling rate. 

A motion was made by Director Inocentes, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
Lopez 

 Noes: None 
 
to authorize the General Manager to execute an amended construction 

agreement with San Diego County Water Authority (CWA) for the design and 

construction of the Tijuana emergency connection with Mexico. 

Tijuana 
Emergency 
Conneciton 
with Mexico 



 

Page 6 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

6. General Manager Griego indicated that the next item on the 

agenda is the request to approve staff recommendation to take no further action 

regarding the Otay Mesa Lot 7 Well.  Mr. Pedro Porras indicated that this is a 

follow-up to a request from the Board to assess the Otay Mesa Lot 7 Well.  He 

indicated that back in April 4, 2001, the Board authorized GEOSCIENCE 

Support Services, Inc. and General Pump to assess the Otay Mesa well to 

determine if the District should develop the well.  He stated that Dr. Williams 

from GEOSCIENCE was in attendance to provide a presentation on their 

findings.  He noted that Dr. Williams is the Founder and President of 

GEOSCIENCE who has over 30 years of experience in groundwater hydrology.  

He stated that Dr. Williams holds Master and Doctorate degrees in groundwater 

hydrology.  He stated that he is also a certified and licensed hydrogeologist and 

a registered geologist with the State of California.  He added that Dr. Williams 

has also been a consultant to the United Nations and several foreign countries 

and is a professor at the University of Southern California teaching graduate 

classes for the past 18 years.  Mr. Porras indicated that with Dr. Williams’ 

background, staff feels very comfortable with the comprehensive study that he 

will present today. 

Director Cardenas indicated that he had read the staff report and asked if 

the presentation would explain staffs’ recommendation to take no further action 

on the Otay Mesa well?  Mr. Porras indicated that Dr. Williams will be 

presenting their findings on the Otay Mesa well.  General Manager Griego 

indicated that it is his recommendation that the District take no further action on 

the well as it was found that the water was not suitable for the District’s needs 

Otay 
Mesa Lot 
7 Well 



 

Page 7 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

and there would be no point in investing any further monies into the Otay Mesa 

Well. 

Director Inocentes indicated that he has been following the well site for 

many years and that there was hope that this well would provide the District its 

first source of independent water supply.  He indicated that on page five (5) of 

GEOSCIENCE’s study, it notes “Based on the above findings, the Lot 7 Well 

would not be a reliable municipal supply well for the District.  However, given 

the relatively low TDS in the well (as compared with other wells in the area) and 

the fact that the well appears to be drawing its source from a bedrock formation 

suggests that a higher quality groundwater source may be present in the 

bedrock which warrants further investigation.”  Mr. Jim Gunstinson indicated 

that Dr. Williams is indicating that there is a possibility that if the District drilled 

several miles east of the Lot 7 Well it might find better quality water.  He stated 

that the District had drilled on Otay property which is about 300 yards further 

east of the current well and the water was “brackish.”  He noted that the District 

has the results on these findings.  General Manager Griego asked 

GEOSCIENCE to present their findings.  Dr. Williams indicated that his 

organization was asked by the District to investigate the Lot 7 Well to verify 

what the production, depth, etc. for the possibility of the District to use the well 

as a water supply source.  He indicated that the well was 10” in diameter and 

1040’ deep.  He indicated that they ran two series of pumping tests, where the 

first is a step draw down test—pumping the well at different rates to identify 

what if can produce—and it was found that the well is capable of about 400 

gpm.  Dr. Williams stated the second test was testing for water quality.  He 

indicated that the well had a total “dissolved salt” content of about 850 which is 



 

Page 8 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

considerably lower than some of the surrounding wells.  He stated that, in 

reviewing the geologic maps, they believe that the Lot 7 Well goes through the 

Otay formation into the Santiago Peak volcanic rocks.  He stated that it is 

possible that the volcanic rocks could have fresher water.  He indicated that this 

is what he is referring to when he states in their report that it “warrants further 

investigation.”  He noted that the volcanic rocks possibly underlie the formation, 

thus if the District drilled a little east, there is a chance that fresher water can be 

found.  He noted that the well is essentially a 400 gpm well with 850 parts per 

million of salt content, which gives it the chemical signature of sea water would 

meet drinking water standards marginally. 

Director Croucher asked Dr. Williams to hold his presentation for a 

moment as two (2) directors had stepped out.  President Bonilla indicated that 

as he did not wish the Board to take Dr. Williams’ time and it was felt that the 

Board had the information they required to make a decision, that the Board 

would go ahead and vote on the matter. 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Croucher and Lopez 
 Noes: Directors Cardenas and Inocentes 
 
to approve staff recommendation to take no further action regarding the Otay 

Mesa Lot 7 Well. 

7. General Manager Griego indicated the next item is the approval of 

the revised wheeling rate for the delivery of treaty water to the City of Tijuana.  

Mr. Mehdi Arbabian indicated that this item was brought to the Board in mid-

March 2001 where a wheeling rate of $182/acre foot (AF) was adopted by the 

Wheeling Rate 
for the Delivery 
of Treat Water 
to City of 
Tijuana 



 

Page 9 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Board.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that the original method staff utilized to establish 

the wheeling rate was to review the overall District cost and to prorate it over 

the amount that Mexico would utilize.  He stated that that analysis has been 

proven to be a bit high.  He stated that the new revised approach is to review 

the incremental cost difference of this wheeling rate to provide water to Mexico.  

Last March, when the original wheeling rate was established, staff had looked 

at the escalating energy cost and had worked it into the wheeling rate.  He 

stated that the energy cost at this time has been substantially reduced by 

almost 40%.  He indicated that they had also reviewed the administrative and 

maintenance costs and based on the incremental cost increase methodology 

and the reduced energy cost, staff is proposing a revised wheeling rate of 

$105/AF for the first two (2) years to recoup the District’s capital investment 

cost of approximately $900,000.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that following the two 

(2) years it will be reduced to $63/AF.  He stated the other alternative is to 

establish a wheeling rate of $76/AF from years one (1) through five (5) to 

recover the District’s capital costs.  Staff, however, recommends $105/AF for 

the first two years and then $63 for every year thereafter. 

Director Croucher asked if the rate could be changed quarterly if 

electricity prices go back up?  Mr. Arbabian indicated the item, which can be 

revisited quarterly, is only the power cost.  However, the price per acre foot can 

only be revisited once a year.  Director Croucher confirmed that if prices do go 

up, then the wheeling rate can be adjusted quarterly and there would not be a 

cost to the ratepayers.  Mr. Arbabian confirmed that that was correct. 



 

Page 10 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Director Cardenas complimented staff on their diligence in trying to lower 

the cost dramatically from the original $380/AF proposal.  He congratulated staff 

on the new proposed rates. 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
Lopez 

 Noes: None 
 
to approve the revised wheeling rate as recommended by staff. 

8. General Manager Griego indicated the next item is the request to 

award a professional engineering services contract to Berryman & Heniger, Inc. 

for the recycled water plan checks in an amount not to exceed $75,000.  Mr. 

Mehdi Arbabian indicated that Berryman & Heniger, Inc. would participate in 

reviewing the District’s recycled plan checks which are plans from Developers 

that are submitted to the Public Services office.  He indicated tha t these plans 

are reviewed and then processed through the Department of Health.  He stated 

that the cost of the review is recovered from the Developers and that the District 

is just acting as a conduit to process the plan review and checks to expedite 

their construction progress.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that because of the 

District’s Policy 21 and the dollar amount which would be awarded to the 

consultant, staff was required to send the RFP to five different consultants and 

the District received three proposals.  Staff is recommending that the 

professional engineering services contract be awarded to Berryman & Heniger, 

Inc. as it was the most reasonable and acceptable proposal. 

 A motion was made by Director Lopez, seconded by Director Inocentes 

and carried with the following vote: 

Award 
Engineering 
Services 
Contract for 
the 
Recycled 
Water Plan 
Checks  



 

Page 11 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

 Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Croucher, Inocentes and Lopez 
 Noes:  Director Cardenas 
 
to approve staffs’ recommendation to award the professional engineering 

services contract to Berryman & Heniger, Inc. for the recycled water plan 

checks. 

9. General Manager Griego indicated that the next item is the 

request to award a professional services contract to Mooney & Associates for 

professional environmental services for the 803-4 reservoir project in the 

amount of $26,000.  Mr. Mehdi Arbabian indicated that this is another 

professional engineering services contract to perform environmental studies.  

He indicated that they would provide an initial environmental study to mitigate 

noise, visual impact and geology of the reservior site.  He indicated that as part 

of the justification for this project, we are going to go ahead with the final design 

of this reservior from a one million gallon reservior to a six million gallons 

reservior.  He stated that this reservior has been identified in the District’s Water 

Resources Master Plan and a study done by Powell and Associates highlighted 

the efficiency in our system and the three different prassure zones, areas 803, 

978 and 1200.  He stated that by constructing this reservior it would mitigate the 

operational storage shortfall.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that we need to proceed 

with this environmental consultant study before staff can proceed with the 

reservior facility design.  The cost for the consultant services is $26,000, and 

because the contract is over $10,000 and less that $75,000, staff had sent a 

RFP to five different firms.  He indicated that Mooney and Associates was  the 

only firm which had responded to the RFP and their proposal was reviewed and 

Award 
Professional 
Environmental 
Services 
Contract for 
the 803-4 
Reservoir 
Project 



 

Page 12 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

accepted by District staff and it is staffs’ recommendation that the Board award 

the contract to Mooney and Associates. 

Director Croucher asked if the District had done business in the past with 

Mooney and Associates.  Mr. Ron Ripperger indicated that the District had done 

business with the contractor quite some time ago and that they had done good 

work. 

Director Cardenas asked if Mr. Ripperger was comfortable with a single 

bid response.  Mr. Ripperger indicated that he was.  Director Cardenas 

complimented Mr. Ripperger for making an effort to bring down the cost 

substantially for environmental services. 

Director Inocentes commented that he was very familiar with Mooney 

and Associates and that they were a very reputable firm. 

Director Croucher asked if the other four firms had indicated why they 

had not responded to the RFP?  Mr. Ripperger indicated that they had staffing 

concerns.  They felt that they did not have enough staffing to handle the project 

and, thus, could not bid. 

 A motion was made by Director Inocentes, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

 Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
   Lopez 
 Noes:  None 
 
to approve staffs’ recommendation to award the professional environmental 

services contract to Mooney & Associates for the 803-4 Reservoir Project in the 

amount of $26,000. 

10. General Manager Griego stated that the next item is the request 

to authorize staff to reject all bids for the 1004-2 Reservior and disinfection 

1004-2 
Reservior 
and 
Disinfection 
Facility 
Project 



 

Page 13 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

facility project.  Mr. Mehdi Arbabian indicated that this project was bid back in 

July 2001 and the bids were publicly opened in August.  He stated that there 

was a problem with the lowest bidder as they had some mathematical errors in 

their bid and some provisions of the bid were not followed.  Mr. Arbabian 

indicated that the actual difference between the second lowest bid and the 

lowest bid, which was non-responsive, is $170,000.  Mr. Arbabian indicated that 

the District received a letter of protest from the second lowest bidder and the 

information was reviewed by Special Counsel.  Upon conclusion of the review, 

staff is recommending that the District reject all bids and request that the project 

be readvertised.   

Director Cardenas asked how long it would take to readvertise the 

project.  Mr. Arbabian indicated about a week to readverstise and about three to 

four weeks to open the bids.  Director Cardenas asked if the expenditure noted 

in the staff report of $313,294 included the design of the reservior?  Mr. 

Arbabian indicated that it did. 

Director Croucher asked by rebidding would it be true that the District 

would not go through another $313,000 as it included the design and not just 

preparation for the bidding process?  Mr. Arbabian confirmed that that was 

correct.  He stated the majority of $313,000 included the design and some staff 

time from the inception of the project to today. 

 A motion was made by Director Inocentes, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

 Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
   Lopez 
 Noes:  None 
 



 

Page 14 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

to approve staffs’ recommendation to reject all bids for the 1004-2 reservior and 

disinfection facility project and approve the readvertisement of the contract for 

bid. 

11. General Manager Griego indicated the next item is the request to 

approve the recalculation of water charges and the resulting account credit of 

$76,823.61 for Centex Homes.  Ms. Elaine Henderson explained that normally 

at the beginning, when a developer purchases a meter, they would pay capacity 

fees upfront.  She indicated that when capacity fees were paid upfront the per 

unit of water charge is $1.78 and the energy fee is charged at $.08/unit of 

water.  She indicated that, however, because of some oversight on Centex 

Homes part caused by staff turnover, they had not paid the capacity fees 

upfront and the meter was purchased as a temporary meter.  She stated that as 

a temporary meter, Centex Homes was billed at twice the water rate.  Ms. 

Henderson indicated that Centex Homes recognized this oversight and have 

paid the capacity fees for the meter.  She indicated that they are requesting that 

the District recalculate their water charges at the single rate instead of the 

double rate which would result in a credit to their account of $76,823.61. 

 A motion was made by Director Inocentes, seconded by Director 

Croucher and carried with the following vote: 

 Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
   Lopez 
 Noes:  None 
 
to approve staffs’ recommendation to recalculate the water and energy charges 

for Centex Homes and provide their account a credit of $76,823.61. 

12. General Manager Griego indicated that the next item is the 

consideration of the Board to approve the issuance of purchase orders to 

 Centex 
Homes 
Water 
Charge 
Recalcu-
lation 

Upgrade of 
FMSII 



 

Page 15 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Mitchell Humphrey, in the amount of $169,000 to upgrade the FMSII Financial 

System Software and operating system and to Network 2000 to purchase an 

additional server for $31,000.  Mr. Geoff Stevens indicated that it was identified 

in the IT Strategic Plan, approximately one year ago, the need to migrate the 

District’s financial system from an HP3000 platform to a NT platform.  He 

indicated that staff also wished to improve the quailty of financial reporting.  He 

indicated that at that time, staff thought it was going to be very expensive as 

they had anticipated requiring to change the entire financial system because the 

architecture of that financial system did not conform to where the District 

wanted to be in terms of an intergrated information systems environment.  He 

stated that the vendor agreed with the District in terms of the direction of the 

market and “recrafted” their product and produced a NT version of it.  He stated 

that, because of this, the District need only upgrade its current system as 

opposed to changing out the entire system which would have required an 

acquisition process, requirements analysis, etc.  He indicated that the upgrade 

would save the District approximately $800,000.  He stated that the upgrade 

would also increase the speed of implementation by approximately a quarter of 

the time it would have taken to implement a complete change of the system.  

Mr. Steven stated that staff feels it will take approximately 90-days to implement 

the upgrade to the system in comparison to a full year to change the entire 

system.  He also shared that the new upgraded system would also be web 

enabled which would allow staff to post the District’s financials to the District 

intranet.   

Director Cardenas asked about the staff report indication of “Reestablish 

a CIP to upgrade the District’s Financial Systems in the amount of $200,000.” 



 

Page 16 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Mr. Stevens indicated that the Capital Plan Budget for FY01 had $1.2 million 

authorized for this project.  He stated that at the direction of his management, 

that item was removed from the FYO2 capital plan because the issue was going 

to be brought forward to the Board for their opinion and since the Board would 

have an opportunity to discuss this, staff was not sure what the numbers were 

going to be when they developed the capital plan.  Director Cardenas asked 

that what staff is requesting then, is to add $200,000 to the FY02 Budget?  Mr. 

Steven indicated that that was correct.  He stated that staff had anticipated that 

they would have to do a full requirements process, a competitive bid and then a 

full data conversion which would involve months of staff time which could have 

rolled the project into the next fiscal year budget.  He stated that staff is trying to 

take advantage of an opportunity to get the work done in advance of having to 

replace the customer information system.  Mr. Stevens stated that because they 

would need to do both projects, this is an opportunity to get this project done 

now on a fast track.  He noted that they also anticipate that the vendor would 

get overloaded with similar conversions next year with their clients and would 

like to get the District’s conversion done prior to this occurrence.  

Director Croucher asked if this went along with the Malcolm Pirnie review 

last year which indicated that one of the District’s opportunity for improvement is 

the Information and Technology Management Systems.  Mr. Stevens indicated 

that that is correct.  He stated that Malcolm Pirnie’s report stated that they liked 

the District’s stategic plan and direction, but what they wanted to see is more 

complete project plans associated with that direction.  He stated that this is a 

complete project plan with full details for implementation and cost and is 

consistent with what the District is doing with the customer system and the GIS 



 

Page 17 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

system.  He stated that staff is moving from the conceptual strategic plan to 

implementation plan. 

Director Cardenas asked when staff anticipated coming back to the 

Board again to request the replacement of the equipment from the $1.2 million 

allocated to the CIP?  Mr. Stevens indicated that he would not, this would take 

the $1.2 million “off the plate” which was the funds allocated for the financial 

systems.  He stated that he would be coming back to the Board to request their 

approval on the need for a Customer Information System, which is a completely 

separate issue. 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and  
Lopez 

 Noes: None  
 
to approve the issuance of purchase orders to Mitchell Humphrey, in the 

amount of $169,000, to upgrade the FMSII Financial System Software and 

Operating System and to Network 2000 to purchase an additional server for 

$31,000. 

13. General Manager Griego stated that the next item on the agenda 

is the Board’s consideration to award a service contract to Excel Engineering 

for the maintenance and support of the Geographic Informationn System (GIS) 

data in the amount of $266,035 and authorize the General manager to 

purchase computer equipment and software for the utilization of GIS systems in 

the field in the amount of $88,520.  Mr. Geoff Sttevens indicated that this is for 

the continuation of the GIS system, moving from the development of the 

software and creation of the database to updating the actual physical data that 

GIS System



 

Page 18 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

is in the GIS database from September 2000 through the end of December 

2001.  He stated that because there has been so much development in our 

service area, the District needs to update its data to assure that it is accurate.  

He added that this would also allow the District to increase its forecasting ability 

so that the accuracy of its Master Plan can be upgraded.  He stated that staff 

would use the water modelling software that is based on the GIS data so that 

we can increase our future forecasting abilities.  Mr. Stevens indicated that the 

final piece of this system is the purchase of the hardware (laptop computers) to 

take the system into the field. 

Director Cardenas indicated that about six or seven months ago he had 

brought a detailed report on the GIS project indicating that we had lost money.  

He asked Mr. Stevens to bring back the budget information and take the 

$266,000 and show him where the monies fit into that budget.  Mr. Stevens 

indicated that he would do so. 

A motion was made by President Bonilla, seconded by Director Lopez 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and  
Lopez 

 Noes: None. 
 
to approve staff recommendation as noted above.  Director Cardenas voted yes 

with the qualification that he receive the information requested with regard to 

where the $266,000 fits into the “old” GIS budget. 

14. General Manager Griego indicated that the next item is the 

request for approval of the purchase of four District fleet vehicles for an 

approximate cost of $119,990.  Mr. Steve Dobrawa indicated that staff had 

taken a different approach and looked to see what vehicles would be available 

Purchase 
of District 
Fleet 
Vehicles  



 

Page 19 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

on dealer premises.  He stated that four vehicles have been located in San 

Diego and are being held for the District pending the Board’s approval.  Mr. 

Dobrawa stated the budgeted amount for these vehicles was $129,800 and that 

we would be coming under budget at $88,520. 

 Director Cardenas indicated that the staff reports note that an Expedition 

is being purchased to replace unit number 18, a 1994 Ford Bronco.  Director 

Cardenas asked who drives the Ford Bronco II at this time?  Mr. Jim 

Gunstinson indicated that the vehicle was part of the fleet and was in a vehicle 

crash.  He stated that the District cannot purchase parts for it and so it is no 

longer being utilized. 

 Director Croucher indicated that what he suggests is rather than 

purchase the Ranger Extra Cab listed in the staff report, replace it with the Ford 

Explorer designated for Board member use.  He indicated that by integrating 

the Explorer into the District fleet it would save the District monies as it would 

not need to purchase the Ranger Extra Cab. 

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by President Bonilla 

and carried with the following vote: 

Ayes:  Directors Bonilla, Cardenas, Croucher, Inocentes and 
Lopez  

 Noes: None 
 
to approve staff recommendation for the purchase of fleet vehicles with the 

exception of the Ranger Extra Cab which would be replaced by the Ford 

Explorer currently utilized by Board members.  Director Cardenas voted yes on 

the three vehicles with the exception of the Expedition. 

15. Director Inocentes indicated that he had attended the LAFCO 

Board meeting last Monday.  He indicated that he was concerned that opinions 

Directors  
Requests/ 
Comments  



 

Page 20 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

were represented at that meeting, as that the District Board, however, the 

Board had no knowledge of the opinion.  He indicated that it raised the question 

of who was running the District.  He asked staff to apprise the Board members 

of information before it is disseminated.  Director Inocentes stated that three 

Board members had spoken at the meeting stating their support of the service 

review recommended by the LAFCO staff.  Mr. Griego indicated he spoke with 

Michael Ott, Executive Officer of LAFCO, and he had indicated that the District 

would receive more information regarding the service review in the next couple 

of weeks. 

 Director Inocentes asked staff, with regard to the well information 

presented at today’s meeting, how many acre feet (AF) of water was 400 

GPM/day annually?  Director Cardenas indicated that it was approximately 1.75 

AF per day.  Director Cardenas indicated that he felt that this water could be a 

good supplement to the recycled water program.  Director Cardenas indicated 

that the treatment plant treats approximately 900 to 1000 GPM/day.  Director 

Inocentes indicated that he would like to go on record that he is really unhappy 

with what is occuring at the District and LAFCO.  He stated that there should be 

a professional courtesy among Board members.  He stated that at the City 

Council meetings, if any Board member had a question on an agenda item, 

then those items are held over to the next meeting unless there is an extreme 

emergency.  He indicated that the well water issue is an item which he feels has 

opened the door to additional criticism and possibly competition.  He stated that 

there is nothing to stop the developer, who own the property, from utilizing the 

water on his property or deciding to start his own water company. 



 

Page 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

 Director Lopez indicated that considering a lot of remarks are being 

made with regard to the District being under a microscope and issues have 

come up with regard to Directors’ expenses.  He asked staff to provide the 

Board a report on the expenses of each Director from January 1, 2001 to date.  

He stated he wished all expenses reported. 

 Director Cardenas asked that the report which Director Lopez requested 

include fax machines, computers, cable hook-up, etc. that any Board member is 

currently provided. 

 Director Croucher indicated that he also wished to have the travel 

expenses brought back to the Board.  He asked if possible, to include the time 

the Director spent at the meeting, whether five minutes or three hours.  He also 

asked Director Inocentes, who attends more than ten meetings a month in 

representation of the District, to place numbers next to those meetings he 

wished per-diem reimbursements.  He stated that it would show his activity, not 

only in the community, but the Board level. 

 Director Croucher also indicated that he too had attended the LAFCO 

Board meeting and he was also disappointed in what occurred at the meeting.  

He indicated that he was proud to represent his constituents and would like to 

be helpful to the District.  He stated that he would like to thank the employees 

for supporting the District while this Board continues to try to get back on track.  

He stated that the ratepayers do note that the District has a good staff and he 

supports the employees.  He also indicated that he supports the LAFCO review 

and encourages employees to work through their labor representative and be 

united and look out for their best interest.  He stated that he would like 

employees to not look at consolidation as a bad thing and it may be something 



 

Page 22 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

which might benefit the employees.  He indicated that if it does go in that 

direction, it may be something to benefit the employees.  He stated that in his 

initial interview, he had indicated that he did favor consolidation, however, he 

favors consolidation for a purpose and not just to consolidate for consolidation 

purposes.  Director Croucher indicated that the fire department which he 

belongs had provided promotions, saved money and moved forward.  He 

indicated that if LAFCO does go in that direction, he asked employees to work 

through their employee representative as it might be a benefit to employees.  

He added that LAFCO could also recognize that the District has good 

employees its doing a good job and allow the District to move forward.  He 

stated that he was troubled by the fact that a letter appeared on behalf of the 

Board of Directors without the Directors meeting and providing staff direction on 

the issue. 

 Director Cardenas indicated that he received an e -mail from Mr. German 

Alvarez with regard to a meeting of the managers and supervisors with Director 

Croucher.  Director Croucher indicated that from the beginning of his 

appointment he had asked the General Manager that he would like to meet the 

staff of the District of which he is a Board member.  He indicated that his first 

meeting with staff was to determine the status of the District and the direction it 

was going.  He indicated that any director can request to meet with employees 

on a positive level and this meeting is just to have an opportunity to meet the 

employees of the District.  Director Croucher also indicated that the Goals and 

Objectives of the General Manager were adopted at the last meeting and in that 

report it notes that at the second meeting in October 2001, the General 

Manager would provide information regarding outsourcing and this specifically 



 

Page 23 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

relates to legal issues.  He asked that the report be very comprehensive in 

terms of where the District has been, where the District is going and what it can 

move towards. 

 Director Inocentes indicated that he did not have a problem with 

Directors meeting with staff he jus t asked that the other Directors be made 

aware of such meetings. 

 Director Cardenas asked if the Board / Management Team luncheon 

scheduled for Friday, October 5, 2001, had been posted.  Special Counsel 

Garcia indicated that the luncheon is ostensibly a social event, however, to be 

cautious, as District matters may be discussed, he decided to be conservative 

and advised the Board Secretary and General Manager to post an agenda of 

the luncheon meeting which will include a item for public participation . 

 Director Croucher indicated that he still had the monies donated by the 

employees to be provided to a water family who has lost a loved one in the 

September 11, 2001 terror attack in New York.  He indicated that he wished to 

invite the Board members to donate if they had an interest. 

16. With no further business to come before the Board, the Board 

meeting was adjourned at 2:29 p.m.  

 

___________________________________ 
President 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

________________________ 
District Secretary 


